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OTTAWA, Ontario K1P 5S9 
 
 
Dear Mr. Dallaire: 
 
Comments on Proposed Regulatory Document 2.2.1 Managing Worker Fatigue and Hours 

of Work 
 

We have reviewed REGDOC-2.2.1, Managing Worker Fatigue and Hours of Work and have met 
with industry partners (Ontario Power Generation, Bruce Power, New Brunswick Power, 
CANDU Energy) to discuss issues, challenges, and impact of this proposed regulatory document.  
We have concerns that the proposed REGDOC is not required from a safety perspective. The 
requirements as written will not have the intended positive impact on nuclear safety as they focus 
on hours of work, which is only one aspect of managing worker fatigue which itself is only one 
factor in ensuring fitness for duty.   
AECL has a robust system of managing and reporting of hours of work to ensure we are in line 
with the Canada Labour Code.  We have no documented history of worker fatigue due to 
excessive hours worked being the root cause of any event.  We do recognize the need for 
constant improvement, but believe the focus needs to be on a holistic approach to ensure that all 
factors affecting worker fitness for duty, e.g. hours of work, rest periods, stress, mental state, 
drugs and alcohol usage, illness, physical fitness, etc., are considered.  We are continuing to 
work to advance employee fitness for duty through a comprehensive program that addresses all 
of these areas.  We are looking at best practices from within the nuclear industry in Canada and 
abroad as well as from other industries to ensure a best in class program. 
We are concerned that, should these draft requirements be applied as written, it will adversely 
impact our industry as follows: 

 Contractors and trades people will be unwilling to work in the nuclear industry due to 
fewer available hours compared to other industries including aviation, transportation and 
rail. 

 There will be an increase in administrative complexities to manage hours of work with no 
demonstrated additional value to nuclear or public safety. 
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Attachment A 
 

AECL Comments on REGDOC-2.2.1, Managing Worker Fatigue and Hours of Work 
 
 

# Document 
section/ 

excerpt of 
section 

Industry issue Suggested  change(if applicable ) Major Comment/ 
request for clarification 

Impact  on industry if  major comment 

1 General Favours provincial legislation, 
ignores federal limitation (no 
ability for planned work to be 
deemed ‘emergency work or 
exceptional circumstances’ as per 
provinces) 

Reflect Canada Labour Code 
provisions for averaging to allow 
federally regulated employers to 
allow employees to work more 
than 48 hours in a week. 

Major Comment  Increased operating costs and decreased capability 

 Requirement to hire more employees 

 Reduced efficiencies 

 Requirement to train a large number of employees in 
safety sensitive roles to provide adequate coverage 

 

2 General Contradicts collective 
agreements negotiated 
unions  

with our 
 
 
 
 

Major Comment   Labour unrest  

 Many of our 23 Unions will challenge the ability of the 
CNSC to regulate changes to their negotiated shift 
schedules via the Canadian Industrial Relations Board. 

 

3 General AECL has 17 collective 
agreements that expire between 
2014 March 31 and 2015 March 
31, we will be in a statutory 
freeze with a portion of our 
employees from 30 November 
2013 until all agreements are 
ratified.   

Regulations to be introduced 
with a long time period before 
required compliance (e.g. Spring 
2015) 

Major Comment 
 

 

 Differing standards by bargaining local, very hard to 
manage/ensure compliance 

 Labour unrest  

 Inability to implement unilaterally.  Would be forced 
to implement to non-union staff then bargaining unit 
by bargaining 
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# Document 
section/ 

excerpt of 
section 

Industry issue Suggested  change(if applicable ) Major Comment/ 
request for clarification 

Impact  on industry if  major comment 

4 1.2 Scope  Too rigid – one approach for all 
positions versus a target 
approach for specific roles 

Regulation to apply to the 
following occupations only: 

 Minimum Complement 
Staff  

 Operations or on-site 
directing of operations 
of safety related systems 
(e.g. certified staff, main 
control room operators, 
field operators, fuel 
handling operators)  

 Maintenance or onsite 
directing of 
maintenance of safety 
related systems  

 Industrial fire brigade  

 Nuclear security officers 
and nuclear response 
team members  

Major Comment  Increased operating costs and decreased capability 

 Requirement to hire more employees 

 Reduced efficiencies 

 Requirement to train a large number of employees in 
safety sensitive roles to provide adequate coverage 

 

5 3.1.1 Roles and 
responsibilities 

Defined hours on contractor 
organizations 

Place the onus of respecting the 
regulations on the contractor 
and have them sign a contract 
with the license holder that they 
will ensure all resources 
supplied to the licensed site 
comply with the regulations 

Major Comment  

 
 AECL uses contractors that also work at other 

locations (nuclear and non-nuclear), we have no way 
of knowing what hours they work at these locations. 

 Reduced ability to use contractors as they will be too 
cumbersome to manage 

 Reduced efficiencies 

 Increased operating costs and decreased capability 

 Requirement to hire more employees 
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# Document 
section/ 

excerpt of 
section 

Industry issue Suggested  change(if applicable ) Major Comment/ 
request for clarification 

Impact  on industry if  major comment 

6 3.1.4 
Emergencies or 
exceptional 
circumstances 

Not applicable under the 
Labour Code 

Canada Recognize the inability of 
federally regulated sites to 
exceed 48 hours worked in a 
week without averaging 
agreements.  Averaging 
agreements allow for work to a 
maximum of 60 hours per week 
so long as the average over a 26 
week period is less than 48 
hours per week. 

Major Comment  

 
 No access to planned or foreseen emergencies or 

exceptional circumstances under the Canada Labour 
Code.  Without averaging AECL would be bound to a 
maximum of 48 hours per week. 

 Increased operating costs and decreased capability 

 Requirement to hire more employees 

 Reduced efficiencies 

 Requirement to train a large number of employees in 
safety sensitive roles to provide adequate coverage 

 

7 3.2 Limits on 
hours of work 
and recovery 
periods –  

Inclusion of item 2. Industrial fire 
brigade, our Chalk River fire 
department has a 24 hour shift 
entrenched in their collective 

Allow for an exemption for 
industrial fire brigades who work 
longer shifts but who are 
allowed to sleep on shift 

Major Comment  

 
 Unions will challenge the ability of the CNSC to 

regulate changes to their negotiated shift schedules to 
the CIRB. 

 Labour unrest 
agreement  

8 3.2.1 Limits on 
hours of work 

If calculated on a rolling 7 day 
period versus the federal static 
calendar week some AECL 

 Major Comment  

 
 Unions will challenge the ability of the CNSC to 

regulate changes to their negotiated shift schedules to 
the CIRB 

collective agreement shift 
schedules exceed 60 hours  

 Labour unrest  

 Increased operating costs and decreased capability 

 Requirement to hire more employees 

 Reduced efficiencies 

 Requirement to train a large number of employees in 
safety sensitive roles to provide adequate coverage 
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# Document 
section/ 

excerpt of 
section 

Industry issue Suggested  change(if applicable ) Major Comment/ 
request for clarification 

Impact  on industry if  major comment 

9 3.2.1 Limits on 
hours of work 

AECL is under the Canada Labour  
Code that allows for averaging of 
hours up to a maximum of 26 
weeks so long as no week 
exceeds 60 and the average is 
less than 48, this is greater than 
the proposed 312 hour maximum 
in a 6 week period (a 52 hour per 
week average) 

Major Comment  Recognize the inability of federally regulated sites to 
exceed 48 hours worked in a week without averaging 
agreements.  Averaging agreements allow for work to 
a maximum of 60 hours per week so long as the 
average over a 26 week period is less than 48 hours 
per week. 

 Increased operating costs and decreased capability 

 Requirement to hire more employees 

 Reduced efficiencies 

 Requirement to train a large number of employees in 
safety sensitive roles to provide adequate coverage 
 

 




